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9 February 2018 
 
 
Attention: Joel Herbert 
 
Resource Assessment 
NSW Department of Planning & Environment 
GPO Box 39 
SYDNEY  NSW  2001 

Dear Mr Herbert, 

 

RE: Tweed Shire Council Submission Cudgen Lakes Sand Quarry 
MP05 _0103B MOD 2 

 
I refer to your e-mail of 17 January 2018 in which you seek comment on the Cudgen 
Lakes Sand Quarry MP05_0135B MOD 2 (Council Reference DA08/1266). 
 
It is noted that the main elements of the subject modification application are the 
consolidation of the previously approved “northern” and “southern” extraction areas, 
and the realignment of Altona Road to the north of the consolidated lake. This 
rationalises quarry operations to a single permanent processing area. Also proposed 
are increases to final batter slopes of the lake from 1:5 to 1:3. This increases total 
volumes of the extraction, and as no changes to annual extraction rates are 
proposed, the life of the quarry resource will be extended. 
 

 



 

Page 2 of 12 

 

There are no objections to the application in principle, however certain details are 
lacking from the application to enable full conditional support (Flooding, Drainage and 
Strategic Context of Sports Fields). Accordingly Council is requesting that the 
Department request additional information from the applicant and that Council is 
further invited to provide comment on any amended conditions before an ultimate 
determination is made by the Department. 
 
Please note Council’s comments on the following matters: 
 
1. Flood Impacts 
 
There is known concern from residents in Kingscliff, Chinderah and Cudgen regarding 
the potential impacts of further floodplain development, including the subject quarry, 
on existing flood risk to residential estates. This concern has increased since the 
March 2017 floods, which exceeded 5% AEP / 20 year ARI levels in the West 
Kingscliff basin. 
 
The applicant has not provided any modelling of the proposed realigned roadway or 
quarry bunding to verify their position that the modification will result in improvement / 
no worsening of flood impacts compared to the approved development. While the 
total footprint of the quarry will be reduced by the deletion of the northern resource, 
this area was to be filled and reinstated to pre-development levels. In the modified 
plan, a larger lake will result. 
 
The applicant should be requested to update flood modelling in the individual 
and cumulative development cases. The applicant has already accessed Council’s 
base flood models for this purpose, so this should not be an onerous task. The 
modelling will need to clearly depict all bunded areas and spillways, the reconfigured 
processing area, and the realigned road embankment to provide relevant outputs for 
flood level, velocity and duration. 
 
2. Drainage Impacts 
 
An existing east-west open drain runs alongside Altona Road, connecting surrounding 
land to the main Kingscliff – Chinderah drain and ultimately the Tweed River. The 
existing consent requires realignment of this drain in conjunction with the realignment 
of Altona Road. Given the modification significantly increases the length of road, and 
therefore the drain also, the application should provide hydraulic information 
confirming the adequacy of a new drain, its dimensions, and that it can be 
adequately contained within the proposed 20m wide road reserve. 
 
3. Batter Stability 
 
The application includes a batter stability assessment by Cardno, supporting the 
proposal to increase final batter slopes, and thereby increasing available yield from 
the quarry. The design specifies a minimum 10m setback from top of batter to the 
edge of the realigned road reserve, and the assessment considers uniform loading at 
the ground surface within this zone. Clarification should be sought from the 
consultants that this assessment is adequate for the section of batter adjacent 
to Altona Road, given this area will be subject to considerably higher loads and 
vibrations from heavy vehicles, and will contain a realigned drainage channel 
which may influence subsoil conditions in this zone. 
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4. Kingscliff Locality Plan 
 
The applicant has provided various versions of his own master plan concepts for the 
Gales Holdings land at West Kingscliff. 
 
One of which is below (as sourced from the Gales Kingscliff website): 
 

 
 
As can be seen from the above image Gales intends to undertake residential 
development on some of the 220ha of land owned by Gales at Kingscliff. This 
additional population will need to consider the need for structured sports fields and 
casual parks.  
 
The proposed modification removes the capacity of north of Altona Road alignment 
from being considered for viable sports fields without backfilling and again relocating 
Altona Road to achieve suitable geometry for sport field configuration. The applicant 
should be asked how future residential land will be serviced having regard to 
structured open space given that the proposed Modification removes the 
capacity for a possible sports field location which was conditioned as part of 
DA05/1450 at Condition 3 (see below commentary on this DA). 
 
Council is in the process of undertaking preparation of the Kingscliff Locality Plan. 
The Draft working plan states has the following mapping and associated text: 
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A 9.5ha section of land was explored as a possible future structured spaces area 
within the new business and knowledge precinct (north/east of the subject site). This 
plan has not been endorsed or publically exhibited and requires liaison with the land 
holder to lock in any future allocation of sports fields. 
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5. Relationship with Other Development Applications 
 
DA05/1450 approved road and drainage works as follows: 
 
Stage 1 To provide a road and drain in a new location to replace the existing which 

it replaces.  

The creation of a new 21m wide road reserve (to ultimately replace the 
Altona Drive road reserve), and the construction of a road within the road 
reserve to the same standard as the existing road (Altona Drive).  

Relocation of the existing drain running adjacent to Altona Drive to within 
the new road reserves. Closure of part of the existing Altona Drive and 
Crescent Street road reserves and transferred to Gales Projects Pty Ltd.  

Stage 2 Upgrade the Stage 1 road and raise the level of the road and upgrade 
pavement width (in principle approval sought) 

Stage 3 To provide a new road to the east of Crescent Street and new intersection 
with Tweed Coast Road (in principle approval sought). 

 

 
 
In association with this DA Council approved a Construction Certificate CC11/0272 
which commenced 11 August 2011.  
 
Works substantially commenced on site when the applicant boxed out approximately 
100m of the realigned road before the consent lapsed. 
 
Council undertook careful consideration of this DA as the Kingscliff Sewerage 
Treatment Plant and other land holders have access over Altona Road and Council 
sewer assets are located in the proximity of the works proposed.  
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DA05/1450 had several conditions to protect access to Kingscliff Sewerage 
Treatment Plant, access to other properties, existing water and sewer services and 
the provision for future sports fields as follows: 
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Council GIS showing the assets to the north of the lot within the road easement. 

 
Therefore any approval issued by the Department that requires a different road 
alignment to that approved under DA05/1450 may necessitate the applicant lodging a 
S96 Modification to DA05/1450 with an amended associated Construction Certificate 
(fees per hour). The Department could consider requesting the applicant lodge a 
concurrent DA/S96 for the amended road alignment to the Mod currently being 
determined by the Department to ensure all Govenmnet and Council consents 
continue to align.  
 
6. Operational Noise 
 
A Noise Impact Assessment was completed for the previous modification in 2015. 
Modelling demonstrated that noise does not exceed the adopted noise criteria except 
in a light northerly and only by 0.4dB (inaudible difference) at Lot 11 in DP 1212919 
the site of a recently approved 40-lot residential subdivision shown diagrammatically 
below.  
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The Department has advised that the exceedance is insignificant and that noise 
impacts from the proposal are acceptable. 
 
The proposed modification including the change in location of the processing site is 
not anticipated to change the noise modelling outputs or exceed the adopted noise 
criteria. No further considerations required. 
 
7. Traffic Noise 
 
The change in the traffic consideration appears to provide a better traffic noise 
outcome when compared to the existing alignment due to the increase in buffer 
distances to residence to the south. No increase in daily or peak traffic loads are 
proposed.  
 
8. Acid Sulfate Soils 
 
The proposed amendments are not considered to materially change previous 
assessments undertaken relating to Acid Sulfate Soils. The main interaction with Acid 
Sulfate Soils relates to the dredging operation and the proposed batter slope 
modification will not increase any potential Acid Sulfate Soil impacts above what was 
previously assessed. Existing monitoring and management strategies are considered 
adequate and no further considerations are required.  
 
9. Groundwater 
 
The proposed amendments are not considered to materially change previous 
assessments undertaken due to no change in extraction rate. The main interaction 
with groundwater relates to the dredging operation and the proposed batter slope 
modification will not increase any potential groundwater impacts above what was 
previously assessed. Existing monitoring and management strategies are considered 
adequate and no further considerations are required.  
 
10. Air Quality 
 
An Air Quality Impact Assessment was completed for the previous modification in 
2015. The Department has advised that the temporary processing area would not 
result in any likely exceedances to the existing approved criteria, and is satisfied that 
the air quality impacts from the proposed modification would be low and acceptable. 
 
A review of the Air Quality Impact Assessment in light of the proposed amendments 
has been undertaken and no further air quality considerations are required. 
 
11. Future Conditions to be modified 
 
Council requests an opportunity to review and changes to the recommended 
conditions of consent. 

_________________________________ 
 
Please request additional information from the applicant as detailed throughout the 
above letter and provide Council an opportunity to review any additional information 
and amendments to the approved conditions of consent.  
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Should you have any enquiries in regard to this matter please contact Council’s Team 
Leader Development Assessment Denise Galle on 02 6670 2459. 
 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
Lindsay McGavin 
MANAGER DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT AND COMPLIANCE  
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